# Treetops Learning Community Equality Policy

Revision 1



### **Treetops Learning Community**

## **Equality Policy**

Document Detail	
Policy Reference Number:	
Category:	
Authorised By:	
Status:	
Date Approved:	Revision 1
Next Review Date:	This policy will be reviewed and approved annually by the Trust Board at the AGM in December

#### Contents

Section	Section Title	Page No.
Number		
1	Introduction	3
2	Aim	4
3	Responsibility for Policy and Procedure	3
4	Recruitment Process	7
5	Complaints	7
6	Role of Parents/Carers	7
7	Raising Awareness of this Policy	8
8	Training	8
9	Equal Impact Assessment	8
10	Monitoring the Effectiveness of the Policy	8
11	Linked Policies	12

#### 1. Introduction

We believe this policy relates to the following legislation:

- The Education (School Performance Information) (England) Regulations 2001
- Equality Act 2010

We understand that the Equality Act 2010 combines and builds upon the existing legislation covering discrimination and promotion of equality of opportunity.

We recognise that this Act brings together into one Act those areas now known as 'protected characteristics' that qualify for protection from discrimination such as age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

We believe that everyone has the right to be treated with dignity and respect. We are opposed to any direct or indirect discrimination against individuals or groups whatever their age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex or sexual orientation.

We all have a responsibility to ensure equality permeates in to all aspects of school life and that everyone is treated equally irrespective of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. We want everyone connected with this school to feel safe, secure, valued and of equal worth.

We have high expectations of all pupils from across the ability range by aiming to provide them with every opportunity to succeed by providing the highest standards of teaching and learning within a curriculum that is broad, balanced, differentiated, relevant and exciting. We will monitor the progress of all pupils in order for them to achieve their expected targets.

We are opposed to any member of the school personnel or others connected with the school being victimized, harassed or bullied by another based on assumptions about their status in the afore mentioned categories or on any other grounds. Also, we will not discriminate against anyone because of their political affiliation.

In order to achieve the aims of this policy we will take measures of positive action to encourage or facilitate the employment or training of minority or disadvantaged groups as we recognise that the avoidance of discrimination is not sufficient in ensuring that equality exists in this school.

We work hard to maintain a positive ethos where all members of the school community work well alongside each other developing positive working relationships.

We want pupils to come to school to enjoy the meaningful experiences that we offer and where they feel valued and special. We want them to have a sense of pride in themselves and their school.

We want school personnel to see the importance and derive a sense of fulfilment from their work in school but above all we want them to feel valued by everyone in the school community.

We wish to work closely with the School Council and to hear their views and opinions as we acknowledge and support Article 12 of the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child that children should be encouraged to form and to express their views.

We as a school community have a commitment to promote equality. Therefore, an equality impact assessment has been undertaken and we believe this policy is in line with the Equality Act 2010.

#### 2. Aims

- To introduce and put into practice the Equality Act 2010 that combines and builds upon the existing legislation covering discrimination and promotion of equality of opportunity.
- To treat everyone equally irrespective of their gender, ethnicity, disability, religion or belief, sexual orientation, age or any other protected characteristic.
- To achieve the highest standards of teaching and learning for all children irrespective of their gender, ethnicity, disability, religion or belief, sexual orientation, age or any other protected characteristic.
- To work with other schools to share good practice in order to improve this policy.

#### 3. Responsibility for Policy and Procedure

#### 3.1 Role of the Governing Body

The Governing Body has:

- Responsibility to comply with all aspects of the Equality Act 2010;
- Delegated powers and responsibilities to the Headteacher to ensure that this policy is embedded into the culture of the school;
- Delegated powers and responsibilities to the Headteacher to ensure all school personnel and stakeholders are aware of and comply with this policy;
- Responsibility to set equality objectives every four years;
- Responsibility to have in place a school accessibility plan in order to provide full access to the school building/s for all disabled people;
- Responsibility for ensuring that the school complies with all equalities legislation;
- Nominated a designated Equalities governor to ensure that appropriate action will be taken to deal with all prejudice related incidents or incidents which are a breach of this policy;
- Organised training for governors in order to ensure that all governors are aware of their legal responsibilities under equality legislation;
- The responsibility to monitor achievement of equality targets;
- Responsibility for ensuring funding is in place to support this policy;
- Responsibility for ensuring this policy and all policies are maintained and updated regularly;
- Responsibility for ensuring all policies are made available to parents;
- The responsibility of involving the School Council in the development, approval, implementation and review of this policy;
- Nominated a link governor to visit the school regularly, to liaise with the Headteacher and the coordinator and to report back to the Governing Body;
- Responsibility for the effective implementation and the annual monitoring and evaluation of this policy;
- Responsibility to annually publish the School's compliance with the Equality Act 2010

#### 3.2 Role of the Headteacher and Senior Leadership Team

The Headteacher and Senior Leadership team will:

- Ensure that this policy is embedded into the culture of the school;
- Ensure all school personnel, pupils and parents are aware of and comply with this policy;
- Work closely with the link governor and coordinator;
- Provide leadership and vision in respect of equality inclusion and community cohesion;
- Record and deal with incidents of racism, bullying and other inappropriate behaviour;
- Seek advice from appropriate agencies in order to ensure that this policy is kept up to date;
- Have high expectations of all pupils from across the ability range;
- Provide every opportunity for pupils to succeed by ensuring the highest standards of teaching and learning;
- Ensure the curriculum is broad, balanced, differentiated, relevant and exciting;
- Monitor the progress of all pupils in order for them to achieve their expected targets;
- Ensure equal opportunities is covered in the school improvement plan, in all subject policies and curriculum plans;
- Monitor and analyse the performance of different groups of pupils within the school;
- Regularly report to the Governing Body on the standards achieved by different groups within the school;
- Highlight and share positive activities that help to tackle educational disadvantage;
- Ensure the accessible is carefully monitored and reviewed annually;
- Recording, reporting and addressing all racial incidents;
- Provide guidance, support and training to all staff;
- Monitor the effectiveness of this policy;
- Annually report to the Governing Body on the success and development of this policy.

#### 3.3 Role of the Coordinator

The coordinator will:

- Lead the development of this policy throughout the school;
- Work closely with the Headteacher and the nominated governor;
- Provide guidance and support to all staff;
- Provide training for all staff on induction and when the need arises;
- Keep up to date with new developments and resources;
- Undertake risk assessments when required;
- Review and monitor;
- Annually report to the Governing Body on the success and development of this policy.

#### 3.4 Role of the Nominated Governor

The Nominated Governor will:

- Work closely with the Headteacher and the coordinator;
- Ensure this policy and other linked policies are up to date;
- Ensure that everyone connected with the school is aware of this policy;
- Report to the Governing Body every term;
- Annually report to the Governing Body on the success and development of this policy.

#### 3.5 Role of School Personnel

School personnel will:

- Act as positive role models in order to promote equality throughout the school community;
- Abide by and adhere to this policy;
- Implement the school's equalities policy and schemes;
- Report and deal with all incidents of discrimination and unequal treatment to the Senior Leadership Team;
- Maintain an overall school ethos of respect and tolerance for one another;
- Promote equality, inclusion and good community relations;
- Challenge inappropriate language behaviour;
- Tackle bias and stereotyping;
- Insist on good pupil conduct;
- Be alert to signs of racial harassment and bullying;
- Have high expectations of all pupils;
- Carefully monitor all groups of pupils to ensure that they make progress and achieve their targets;
- Provide a stimulating, relevant and exciting curriculum that will motivate and enthuse all students;
- Use a variety of teaching methods to ensure effective learning takes place for all pupils;
- Promote equality through curriculum planning;
- Ensure planning is differentiated in order to provide full access for all pupils;
- Create a positive classroom ethos and is welcoming to both sexes;
- Ensure pupils feel valued and have individual targets;
- Be open to the views of pupils;
- Encourage pupils to share their experiences of different cultures and different religions;
- Provide positive classroom displays of pupils work;
- Attend appropriate training sessions;
- Report any concerns they have on any aspect of the school community.

#### 3.6 Role of Pupils

Pupils will:

- Be aware of and comply with this policy;
- Recognise that they have a role and responsibility to promote equality, inclusion and good community relations;
- Challenge inappropriate language behaviour;
- Tackle bias and stereotyping;
- Work to promote anti-bullying strategies;
- Respond appropriately to incidents of discrimination and harassment and understand the action needed to report these
- Learn to take pride in their work;
- Produce work of a high standard;
- Listen carefully to all instructions given by the teacher;
- Ask for further help if they do not understand;
- Participate fully in all lessons;
- Participate in discussions concerning progress and attainment;
- Treat others, their work and equipment with respect;

- Support the school Code of Conduct and guidance necessary to ensure the smooth running of the school;
- Talk to others without shouting and will use language which is neither abusive nor offensive;
- Hand in homework properly completed and on time;
- Wear correct uniform;
- Liaise with the school council;
- Take part in questionnaires and surveys.

#### 3.7 Role of the School Council

The School Council will be involved in:

- Determining this policy with the Governing Body;
- Discussing improvements to this policy during the school year;
- Organising surveys to gauge the thoughts of all pupils;
- Reviewing the effectiveness of this policy with the Governing Body.

#### 4. Recruitment Process

We are an Equal Opportunities employer and we adhere to the principles of equal opportunity in all aspects of the recruitment process.

We welcome applications for vacant posts from appropriately qualified persons regardless of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

#### 5. Complaints

The complaints procedures will be used to deal with any discriminatory complaint from any member of the school personnel.

Any case of harassment will be dealt with by the school's disciplinary procedure.

#### 6. Role of Parents/Carers

Parents/carers will:

- Be aware of and comply with this policy;
- Be encouraged to take an active role in the life of the school by attending:
  - parents and open evenings
  - o parent-teacher consultations
  - o class assemblies
  - school concerts
  - o fundraising and social events
- Be encouraged to work in school as volunteers;
- Be encouraged to organise after school clubs or groups;

• Be asked to take part periodic surveys conducted by the school.

#### 7. Raising Awareness of this Policy

We will raise awareness of this policy via:

- The School Handbook/Prospectus
- The school website
- The Staff Handbook
- Meetings with parents such as introductory, transition, parent-teacher consultations and periodic curriculum workshops
- School events
- Meetings with school personnel
- Communications with home such as weekly newsletters and of end of half term newsletters
- Reports such annual report to parents and Headteacher reports to the Governing Body
- Information displays in the main school entrance

#### 8. Training

We ensure all school personnel have equal chances of training, career development and promotion.

Periodic training will be organised for all school personnel so that they are kept up to date with new information and guide lines concerning equal opportunities.

#### 9. Equal Impact Assessment

Under the Equality Act 2010 we have a duty not to discriminate against people on the basis of their age, disability, gender, gender identity, pregnancy or maternity, race, religion or belief and sexual orientation.

This policy has been equality impact assessed and we believe that it is in line with the Equality Act 2010 as it is fair, it does not prioritise or disadvantage any pupil and it helps to promote equality at this school.

#### 10. Monitoring the Effectiveness of the Policy

The practical application of this policy will be reviewed annually or when the need arises by the coordinator, the Headteacher and the nominated governor.

A statement of the policy's effectiveness and the necessary recommendations for improvement will be presented to the Governing Body for further discussion and endorsement. (See Policy Evaluation).

#### **11. Linked Policies**

<ul><li>Anti-bullying</li></ul>	<ul><li>Assessment</li></ul>	<ul><li>Curriculum</li></ul>
<ul> <li>Pupil Behaviour &amp; Discipline</li> </ul>	Sex & Relationships	<ul><li>Support Staff</li></ul>
■ Teaching & Learning	■ Teaching Staff	■ Ethos

er, if parents have concerns, they can expect any issues to be treated seriously by the school in accordance with this policy document.

The Complaints Policy has been created to deal with any complaint against a member of staff or the school as a whole, relating to aspects of the school or the provision of facilities or services.

- A complaint can be brought by a parent of a registered child at the school or any person who has been provided with a service/facility at the school. This person is referred to as the complainant.
- Schools may have a nominated member of staff with responsibility for the operation and management of the school complaints procedure. This member of staff, however, may not

necessarily be the Headteacher. At Treetops School, the class teacher will be the first point of contact.

- A concern becomes a complaint only when the complainant asserts the school has acted wrongly in some significant decision, action or failure to take action.
- Even when a complaint has been made it can be resolved or withdrawn at any stage.

#### 12. Aims

In line with the Education Act 2002, Treetops School will:

- Encourage the resolution of problems by informal means wherever possible.
- Allow swift handling with established time-limits for action and keeping people informed of any progress.
- Ensure a full and fair investigation by an independent person where necessary.
- Respect people's desire for confidentiality.
- Address all the points at issue and provide an effective response and appropriate redress where necessary.
- Provide information to the school's senior management team so that services can be improved.

#### 13. Dealing with concerns informally

- The school recognises that a vast majority of complaints and concerns can be resolved informally.
- The complainant must feel able to raise concerns and complaints with members of staff, either in person, by telephone or in writing. A preliminary discussion may be undertaken to help clarify if he or she is making a complaint or expressing an opinion, and whether they wish to take it further.
- The complainant should be able to bring a friend to any discussion.
- The member of staff dealing with the concern should make sure that the complainant is clear what action (if any) or monitoring of the situation has been agreed.
- The process should be completed speedily and concluded in writing with appropriate detail.
- Where no satisfactory solution has been found, the complainant should be informed that he
  or she will need to consider whether to make a formal complaint in writing to the
  Headteacher.
- To assist in this process a complaint form should be provided. (See Appendix 1 or 2.)

#### 14. Monitoring and recording complaints

At all stages of the complaints procedure the following information should be recorded:

- Name of the complainant.
- Date and time at which complaint was made.
- Details of the nature of the complaint.

- Desired outcome of the complainant.
- How the complaint is being investigated (including written records of any interviews held).
- Results and conclusions of investigations.
- Any action taken.
- The complainant's response.
- Record of any subsequent action if required.

#### 15. Special Circumstances

- If the complaint suggests that a child has been at risk of significant harm through violence, emotional abuse, sexual interference or neglect, it may be referred without further notice to Children's Social Care and/or to the social services authority for the area in which the child lives.
- If a social services authority decides to investigate a situation, this may postpone or supersede investigation by the Headteacher or Governing Body.
- Where a matter can be resolved through a legal appeal, it will not be considered as a formal complaint. The key areas are: admissions decisions; certain decisions relating to formal assessment of special educational needs; and decisions to permanently exclude a child.

#### 16. Complaints Procedure

#### Stage 1 - Complaint Heard by Staff Member

- Parent/carer discusses their concerns with child's class teacher, or if they prefer another member of the school's teaching staff.
- Where the complaint concerns the Headteacher, the complaints co-ordinator can refer the complainant to the chair of Governor.
- If the first approach is made to a Governor, the next step would be to refer the complainant to the appropriate person and advise them about the procedure.
- Governors should not act unilaterally on an individual complaint outside the formal procedure
  or be involved at the early stages, in case they are needed to sit on a panel at a later stage of
  the procedure.

• If a resolution cannot be sought at this level, or the complainant is dissatisfied at the outcome of these initial discussions, then the parent/carer may wish to escalate the complaint to the next level of the procedure.

#### **Stage 2 - Complaint Heard by Headteacher**

- The parent/carer should request an appointment to see the Headteacher. This should be as soon as reasonably practical to avoid any possible worsening of the issue.
- The Headteacher may delegate the task of collating the information to another staff member but not the decision on the action to be taken.
- If the complaint is against a member of staff, the Headteacher should talk to the staff member against whom the complaint has been made. If necessary, the Headteacher should interview witnesses and take statements from those involved.
- The Headteacher should keep reasonable written records of meetings, telephone conversations and other documentation.
- The Headteacher will investigate fully and communicate findings and/or resolutions to the complainant(s) verbally or in writing depending on the nature of the issue.
- Once all the relevant facts have been established, the Headteacher should produce a written
  response to the complainant. The written response should include a full explanation of the
  decision and the reasons for it. Where appropriate, it should include what action the school
  will take to resolve the complaint.
- Stage 2 should be completed in 15 school days. However, it is recognised that where the case is complex, it may prove difficult to meet this timetable. In such cases, the Headteacher should write to the complainant giving a revised target date.
- If the parent/carer is not satisfied with the outcome at this stage then the complaint can be moved to the next level for an independent review by the Governing Body Panel.
- If the concern or complaint is against the Headteacher, in the first instance the complainant will need to write in confidence to the chair of Governor at the school. The chair of Governor will seek to resolve the issue informally before, if necessary, moving to Stage 3.

#### Stage 3 – Complaint Heard by Governing Bodies' Complaints Appeal Panel (CAP)

- Complaints at this stage should be made in writing and addressed to the Chair of School Governors no later than 10 school days following receipt of a Stage 2 outcome. The Chair of Governors, or a nominated Governor, will convene a GB CAP.
- Written acknowledgement of the complaint will be made within 3 school days informing the complainant their complaint will be heard within 20 school days.
- A CAP will be arranged with 3 members of the Governing Body and the complainant. 5 days' notice will be given to all attending. The Clerk/Chair of the CAP should write to the

complainant to explain how the review will be conducted. The letter should be copied to the Headteacher.

- At the meeting everyone's case will be put across and discussed. The CAP should reconsider
  the issues raised in the original complaint and not confine themselves to consideration of
  procedural issues.
- The meeting should allow for:
  - The complainant to explain his or her complaint and the Headteacher to explain the reasons for his or her decision.
  - The Headteacher to question the complainant about the complaint and the complainant to question the Headteacher.
  - The CAP to have an opportunity to question both the complainant and the Headteacher.
  - Any party to have the right to bring witnesses (subject to the approval of the Chair of CAP) and all parties having the right to question all the witnesses; and
  - A final statement by the Headteacher and complainant.
- A written response to the complainant will be made within 15 school days. The letter will explain if there are any further rights of appeal and, if so, to whom they need to be addressed.

#### Role of the Secretary of State, Department for Education

If the complainant is unhappy with the way in which the school has dealt with the complaint, they may be able to approach the Secretary of State, Department for Education to intervene.

For the Secretary of State to intervene following a complaint, he needs to be sure that either:

• The school has acted or is proposing to act unreasonably in the exercise or performance of its functions imposed by or under the Education Act 1996; or

The school has failed to discharge any duty imposed by or for the purposes of the Education Act1996.

#### 17. Roles & Responsibilities

#### The Remit of the CAP

The panel can:

- Dismiss the complaint in whole or in part.
- Uphold the complaint in whole or in part.
- Decide on the appropriate action to be taken to resolve the complaint.
- Recommend changes to the school's systems or procedures to ensure that problems of a similar nature do not recur.

There are several points which any Governor sitting on a complaints panel needs to remember:

- It is important that the appeal hearing is **independent and impartial** and that it is seen to be so. No Governor may sit on the panel if they have had a prior involvement in the complaint or in the circumstances surrounding it. In deciding the make-up of the panel, Governor's need to try and ensure that it is a cross-section of the categories of Governor and sensitive to the issues of race, gender and religious affiliation.
- The aim of the hearing, which needs to be held in private, will always be to resolve the
  complaint and achieve reconciliation between the school and the complainant. However, it
  has to be recognised the complainant might not be satisfied with the outcome if the hearing
  does not find in their favour. It may only be possible to establish the facts and make
  recommendations which will satisfy the complainant that his or her complaint has been taken
  seriously.
- An effective panel will acknowledge that many complainants feel nervous and inhibited in a
  formal setting. Parents often feel emotional when discussing an issue that affects their child.
  The panel chair will ensure that the proceedings are as welcoming as possible. The layout of
  the room will set the tone and care is needed to ensure the setting is informal and not
  adversarial.
- Extra care needs to be taken when the complainant is a child. Careful consideration of the atmosphere and proceedings will ensure that the child does not feel intimidated. The panel needs to be aware of the views of the child and give them equal consideration to those of adults. Where the child's parent is the complainant, it would be helpful to give the parent the opportunity to say which parts of the hearing, if any, the child needs to attend.

The Governor sitting on the panel need to be aware of the complaints procedure.

#### The Role of the Clerk

Schools are strongly advised that any panel or group of Governor considering complaints be clerked. The clerk would be the contact point for the complainant and be required to:

- Set the date, time and venue of the hearing, ensuring that the dates are convenient to all parties and that the venue and proceedings are accessible.
- Collate any written material and send it to the parties in advance of the hearing.
- Meet and welcome the parties as they arrive at the hearing.
- Record the proceedings.
- Notify all parties of the panel's decision.

The Role of the Chair of the Governing Body or the Nominated Governor

The nominated Governor role:

- Check that the correct procedure has been followed.
- If a hearing is appropriate, notify the clerk to arrange the panel.

#### The Role of the Chair of the Panel

The Chair of the Panel has a key role, ensuring that:

- The remit of the panel is explained to the parties and each party has the opportunity of putting their case without undue interruption.
- The issues are addressed.
- Key findings of fact are made.
- Parents and others who may not be used to speaking at such a hearing are put at ease.
- The hearing is conducted in an informal manner with each party treating the other with respect and courtesy.
- The panel is open minded and acting independently.
- No member of the panel has a vested interest in the outcome of the proceedings or any involvement in an earlier stage of the procedure; each side is given the opportunity to state their case and ask questions.

Written material is seen by all parties. If a new issue arises it would be useful to give all parties the opportunity to consider and comment on it.

#### Appendix 1

#### **Example Complaints Form**

Please complete and return to the class teacher who will acknowledge receipt and explain what action will be taken.

Your name:	

Pupil's name:	
Your relationship to the pupil:	
Address:	
Postcode:	
Day time telephone number:  Evening telephone number:	
Please give details of your complaint.	
Flease give details of your complaint.	
What action if any have you already taken to try and resolve your complaint	
What action, if any, have you already taken to try and resolve your complaint. (Who did you speak to and what was the response)?	
(Who did you speak to and what was the response)?	
(Who did you speak to and what was the response)?	
(Who did you speak to and what was the response)?	
(Who did you speak to and what was the response)?	
(Who did you speak to and what was the response)?	
(Who did you speak to and what was the response)?	
(Who did you speak to and what was the response)?	
(Who did you speak to and what was the response)?	
(Who did you speak to and what was the response)?  What actions do you feel might resolve the problem at this stage?	

Are you attaching any par	perwork? If so, please give details.	
,		
Signature:		
Date:		
Official use		
Date acknowledgement s	ent:	
By who:		
Complaint referred to:		
Date:		
Appendix 2		
School Example Complaints F	orm	
please complete this form a	ly to resolve your complaint and wish to take the matter further, and send it to the Headteacher. (If your complaint is against the send the form to the Chair of the Governing Body).	
Name:	Address:	
Tel. No/Mobile:	Postcode:	

Email:	
Name of child:	
Date of Birth of child:	
What is your complaint about an	d what would you like the Headteacher to do?
When did you discuss your cond	cern/complaint with the appropriate member of staff?
What was the result of the discus	ssion?
Signed: Appendix 3	Date:
Example letter	
	of the Governing Body may wish to send to the complainant 2 for consideration by the Governing Body.
Dear Name	
Thank you for your letter dated Headteacher's response to your com	setting out the reasons why you are not satisfied with the applaint about

I write to let you know that I will be arranging for a Complaints Appeal Panel (CAP) to consider your complaint in accordance with our school's complaints procedure.

As explained in the procedure, the Clerk/Chair of the CAP will let you know in writing how the CAP intends to consider your complaint.

#### (or in the case of complaints against the Headteacher)

I have received your complaint against the Headteacher of ......School.

I write to let you know that I have forwarded a copy of your complaint to the Headteacher with a request that s/he respond within ten school days to the issues raised in the complaint.

A copy of the Headteacher's response will be sent to you as soon as possible.

If you are not satisfied with the Headteacher's response, I will arrange for a Complaints Appeal Panel to consider your complaint in accordance with Stage 2 of the attached complaints procedure.

As explained in the procedure, the Clerk/Chair of the Complaints Appeal Panel will let you know in writing how the complaint will proceed.

Yours sincerely,

#### **Chair of the Governing Body**

#### Appendix 4

#### **Checklist for a Panel Hearing**

- The panel hearing is as informal as possible.
- Witnesses are only required to attend for the part of the hearing in which they give their evidence.
- After introductions, the complainant is invited to explain their complaint, and be followed by their witnesses.
- The Headteacher may question both the complainant and the witnesses after each has spoken.

- The Headteacher is then invited to explain the school's actions and be followed by the school's witnesses.
- The complainant may question both the Headteacher and the witnesses after each has spoken.
- The panel may ask questions at any point.
- The complainant is then invited to sum up their complaint.
- The Headteacher is then invited to sum up the school's actions and response to the complaint.
- Both parties leave together while the panel decides on the issues.
- The chair explains that both parties will hear from the panel within a set time scale.